
AGENDA 
ARKANSAS LOTTERY COMMISSION 

Wednesday, November 19, 2014 
11:00 a.m. 

Taylor Room 
William F Rogers Conference Center 

University of the Ozarks 
Clarksville, Arkansas 

 
 
 

I. Call to Order 

II. Opening remarks 
 - Chairman Campbell 
 - President Richard Dunsworth, JD, University of the Ozarks.  
 - Student Testimonials  
 

III. Approval of minutes of meeting of October 15, 2014 
 

IV. Report from the Internal Auditor 
 

V. Report from the Director 
 

VI. Report from ALC Committees 
 - Personnel 

 
VII. Other business 

 
Adjourn 

 
 



MINUTES 
 

ARKANSAS LOTTERY COMMISSION 
 

Wednesday, October 15, 2014 
11:00 a.m. 

Black Gold Room 
L.A. Davis Student Union 

University of Arkansas at Pine Bluff 
Pine Bluff, AR 

 
Call to Order 
Chairman Campbell called the meeting to order.  Commissioners Hammons, Lamberth, 
Frazier, Streett and Pierce were also present.  ALC employees Director Woosley and Internal 
Auditor Brown were present, as were staff members Block, M. Smith, Ralston, Bunten, 
Backes, Vick, Fetzer, Stebbins, Basham, Craig, J. Smith, and others. 
 
Opening Remarks 
University of Arkansas at Pine Bluff Chancellor, Dr.  Laurence B. Alexander, welcomed the 
Arkansas Lottery Commissioners to the campus.  Dr. Alexander introduced two UAPB 
students, Taylor Reedus, a freshman Biology major,  and Carlton Brewer, a Senior majoring 
in Political Science.  The students discussed their academic goals and how the Arkansas 
Academic Challenge Scholarship has made it easier to achieve them.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
The first order of business was the approval of the minutes of the meeting held on August 
20, 2014.  Commissioner Frazier made a motion to accept the minutes, Commissioner 
Streett seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Report from the Internal Auditor 
Mr. Brown was recognized to give his monthly Internal Audit Update (in file).  Mr. Brown 
said that six audits had recently been completed and final reports issued (in file).  Four of 
those audits had no observations or recommendations to report.  An observation was noted 
in the Background Checks Audit, recommendations were made, and additional follow-up 
will be necessary in order to consider the observation cleared.  There was also an 
observation noted in an audit follow-up for Federal and State Tax Withholding and 
Reporting Follow-Up Procedures, and additional follow-up will be necessary to consider the 
observation cleared.   
 
Report from the Director 
Director Woosley was recognized to give his report (in file).  He gave an update on the 
Beneficiary Campaign, which began in August.  He discussed the Comparative Income 
Statements, noting that the numbers reflect a downward trend in online ticket sales and an 
upward trend for instant ticket sales.  Online ticket sales for September 2014 were down 
over $2.6 Million compared to September 2013, but instant tickets were up $1.5 Million 
compared to the same period last year.  In reviewing the September 2014 Actual vs. Budget, 



2 
 

sales in both instant and online ticket sales were a little less than anticipated.  Overall ticket 
sales were down $2 Million from the budgeted amount.   
 
Director Woosley said that transfers to ADHE were currently $1.4 Million under budget, but 
that instant ticket sales were continuing to improve, a new advertising campaign had kicked 
off at the end of September, and a new $10 instant ticket was doing very well, and he 
hoped to see the deficit slowly chipped away.   
 
He reported that Powerball continues to struggle and that in September the MUSL group 
had voted to make changes to the game.  The changes include rolling the $1 PowerPlay 
option into the $2 cost of the ticket;  increasing the odds to win the top prize (from one and 
175 million to one and over 260 million); and adding an option to pay $1 for a second-
chance drawing.  The changes will occur in mid-April 2015.     
 
Director Woosley reminded the Commissioners that Pollard Banknote and GTech had 
recently met with ALC to discuss games [from those vendors] that ALC could add to its 
instant ticket catalog.  Pollard Banknote offered Scratch FX and Playbook and  Bejeweled 
was the property offered by GTech. He presented comparisons, against SGI, of printing 
costs/fees and inventory levels for those games.   
 
There was discussion of Pollard Banknote’s $20 Playbook.  Director Woosley said that the 
Lottery was reducing its $20 instant ticket catalog.  One $20 ticket would be introduced in 
January 2015.  The earliest that ASL could introduce Pollard Banknote’s Playbook would be 
September or October 2015 and that would be ASL’s second and final $20 ticket for the 
year.  Commissioner Lamberth asked what the arguments were, for and against, going with 
the Playbook.  Director Woosley said that an argument for the game was that it was 
somewhat new.  It also offered value to the player by combining several games for the price 
of one $20 booklet.  An argument against was that it could possibly negatively impact the 
sales of the $5 and $10 tickets.  Director Woosley said that he was not yet prepared to bring 
anything to the Commission for approval, but wanted to be sure there was general 
consensus for him to continue discussion with the two vendors.   
 
Commissioner Hammons asked if there were statistics for Playbook ticket sales.  Director 
Woosley said that game had been sold by Iowa, Missouri, Minnesota, and Ohio and he 
would get those statistics for the Commissioners.  Commissioner Lamberth asked that he 
also provide the percent of return for the proposed games.   
 
Director Woosley presented a Proposed Play it Again program change (in file), which would 
be implemented in December.  He said that currently the program offers four $1 million 
prizes per year, which has become very expensive to sustain.  The proposed program 
change would be to hold two generic Play it Again drawings annually, rather than having a 
drawing at the end of each individual game. The program change would free up millions of 
dollars that could be put back into games annually as instant scratch off prizes rather than 
being tied up in a second-change prize, that is, there would be more actual cash available to 
apply to the scratch off games.  Commissioner Lamberth made a motion to approve the 



3 
 

Play It Again program change and Commissioner Pierce seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed unanimously.   
 
Reports from ALC Committees 
Audit and Legal Committee:  Commissioner Lamberth reported that the Audit & Legal 
Committee had voted to approve a revised draw game audit proposal, which she now 
brought to the Commission for consideration.  She explained that the draw game audit 
proposal was revised because the Commission had approved two Internal Audit classified 
employee positions, C118 and C121, but that those positions were no longer available to fill.  
Mr. Brown revised the proposal to reflect that the part-time draw auditor position would be 
a grade C120 rather than C118 as originally approved, and the Assistant Auditor would be 
hired as a C122 rather than C121.  Commissioner Hammons made a motion to approve the 
revised draw game audit proposal and Commissioner Frazier seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed unanimously.   
 
Retail and Marketing Committee:  Commissioner Pierce reported that the Retail and 
Marketing Committee had voted to approve a bonding change proposal and he made the 
following motion: 
  
 The Retail and Marketing Committee recommends that the ALC allow the Director to 

present to the Arkansas Lottery Commission Legislative Oversight Committee a 
bonding change proposal which would include a statutory change (language deletion) 
to A.C.A. § 23-115-603(c)(1).  The proposal would also include the establishment of a 
self-bonding process that would allow the ALC to self-bond retailers at an amount of 
$100 annually, or at an amount the Arkansas Lottery Commission Legislative Oversight 
Committee deemed appropriate.    

 
Commissioner Frazier seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously.   
 
Personnel Committee:  Nothing to report.  
 
Vendor Committee:  Nothing to report. 
 
Higher Education Committee:  Nothing to report.   
 
Other Business 
Director Woosley stated that Scientific Games/MDI had presented a proposal to reduce the 
Points for Prizes billing rate and that he would be bringing the proposal to the Commission 
at a later date. 
 
Meeting Date 
Chairman Campbell stated that the next Commission meeting would be held on November 
19, but that the location was yet to be determined.   
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.   





 
Mayowa Awopetu, 
second from the right, is 
a senior from Pine Bluff 
who is double-majoring 
in finance and 
accounting.  He already 
has a job lined up with 
Walmart’s finance 
development program 
upon graduation.   
 
(Arkansas Lottery 
Commissioner Mark 
Scott of Rogers is on the 
far right.) 

University of Arkansas vs. UAB Blazers 
D.W.R. Razorback Stadium, Fayetteville, AR 

October 25, 2014 



University of Arkansas at Pine Bluff  
vs.  

Mississippi Valley State 
Golden Lions Stadium, Pine Bluff 

                       November 1, 2014 
 
This was Legislator’s Day, with the 
following area legislators in 
attendance: 
 
Senator Stephanie Flowers 
Senator Linda Chesterfield 
Representative Mike Holcomb 
Representative Hank Wilkins 
Representative James Word 
Representative Charles Armstrong 
Representative-Elect Ken Ferguson 
 
 



Brandon Haley, the 
student holding the 
cap, is a Junior at ASU, 
majoring of Health 
Studies.  Standing with 
him are House Speaker 
Davy Carter, Speaker-
Elect Jeremy Gillam, 
Senator John Cooper, 
Rep. Mary Broadaway, 
Rep. Butch Wilkins, 
Rep. Monte Hodges 
and ADHE Director 
Shane Broadway. 

On field Presentation Centennial Bank Stadium 
ASU vs. South Alabama, November 8, 2014 



Recap from the Mitchell Group”  “Amber, Jason and I had a 
chilly Saturday game day activation this weekend at ASU. As 
voting is completed, the Tailgate Town could have better 
been described as a ghost town, but it didn’t stop us. We 
worked with our contacts and were granted permission to 
stand at the entrances into the stadium to highlight the five 
year anniversary, discuss the numbers surrounding the 
beneficiaries and we were able to provide the two full boxes 
of rally towels to the attendees as scheduled.”  

ASU vs. South Alabama, November 8, 2014 



Comparative Income Statements 
For October 2014 and October 2013 

GAAP Basis Income Favorable/ Percentage 
Statement October 2014 October 2013 (Unfavorable) Variance 

Revenues 
Instant Tickets  $    26,579,882   $    26,541,683   $            38,199  0.1% 
Online Tickets           6,336,002            6,684,173             (348,171) -5.2% 
Retailer App, Fidelity and Other                 43,855                  45,542                  (1,687) -3.7% 

Total Revenues        32,959,739         33,271,398             (311,659) -0.9% 

Operating Expense 
Instant Game Prizes        19,007,066         19,329,937               322,871  1.7% 
On-Line Game Prizes           2,634,569            3,532,738               898,169  25.4% 
Retailer Commissions           1,845,605            1,847,132                    1,527  0.1% 
Gaming Contract Costs           1,692,417            1,689,538                  (2,879) -0.2% 
Marketing and Advertising              427,819               460,001                  32,182  7.0% 
General and Administrative              659,389               661,384                    1,995  0.3% 
Other Agencies Services                 74,000                  91,233                  17,233  18.9% 

Total Operating Expenses        26,340,865         27,611,963            1,271,098  4.6% 

Operating Income           6,618,874            5,659,435               959,439  17.0% 

Interest Income                 14,158                  17,908                  (3,750) -20.9% 
Other Non Operating Income                           -                             -                             -   0.0% 

    
Income Before Transfers  $      6,633,032   $      5,677,343   $          955,689  16.8% 

Net Proceeds  $      5,939,626   $      6,773,937   $        (834,311) -12.3% 
Note – Net Proceeds does not includes unclaimed prizes. 



Comparative Income Statements  
For October 2014 Actual Versus Budget  

GAAP Basis Income October 2014 October 2014 Favorable/ Percentage 
Statement Actual Budget (Unfavorable) Variance 

Revenues 
Instant Tickets  $    26,579,882   $    27,300,055   $        (720,173) -2.6% 
Online Tickets           6,336,002            6,930,020             (594,018) -8.6% 
Retailer App, Fidelity and Other                 43,855                  46,800                  (2,945) -6.3% 

Total Revenues        32,959,739         34,276,875          (1,317,136) -3.8% 

Operating Expense 
Instant Game Prizes        19,007,066         19,435,027               427,961  2.2% 
On-Line Game Prizes           2,634,569            3,665,419            1,030,850  28.1% 
Retailer Commissions           1,845,605            1,916,889                  71,284  3.7% 
Gaming Contract Costs           1,692,417            1,686,089                  (6,328) -0.4% 
Marketing and Advertising              427,819               416,666                (11,153) -2.7% 
General and Administrative              659,389               685,808                  26,419  3.9% 
Other Agencies Services                 74,000                  66,666                  (7,334) -11.0% 

Total Operating Expenses        26,340,865         27,872,564            1,531,699  5.5% 

Operating Income           6,618,874            6,404,311               214,563  3.4% 

Interest Income                 14,158                  11,666                    2,492  21.4% 
Other Non Operating Income                            -                             -                             -   0.0% 

Income Before Transfers  $      6,633,032   $      6,415,977   $          217,055  3.4% 

Net Proceeds  $      5,939,626   $      5,940,976   $             (1,350) 0.0% 
Note – Net Proceeds does not includes unclaimed prizes. 



Comparative Income Statements 
YTD October 30, 2014 Compared to YTD October 30, 2013 

GAAP Basis Income Actual Actual Favorable/ Percentage 
Statement YTD 10/31/14 YTD 10/31/13 Unfavorable Variance 

Revenues 
Instant Tickets  $ 103,175,968   $ 102,045,580   $      1,130,388  1.1% 
Online Tickets        22,789,642         30,439,897          (7,650,255) -25.1% 
Retailer App, Fidelity and Other              201,102               193,585                    7,517  3.9% 

Total Revenues      126,166,712       132,679,062          (6,512,350) -4.9% 

Operating Expense 
Instant Game Prizes        73,794,381         72,653,616          (1,140,765) -1.6% 
On-Line Game Prizes        11,296,393         15,990,185            4,693,792  29.4% 
Retailer Commissions           7,087,375            7,383,315               295,940  4.0% 
Gaming Contract Costs           6,479,712            6,510,400                  30,688  0.5% 
Marketing and Advertising           1,218,458            1,309,585                  91,127  7.0% 
General and Administrative           2,469,934            2,397,901                (72,033) -3.0% 
Other Agencies Services              298,480               364,932                  66,452  18.2% 

Total Operating Expenses      102,644,733       106,609,934            3,965,201  3.7% 

Operating Income        23,521,979         26,069,128          (2,547,149) -9.8% 

Interest Income                 89,011                  97,039                  (8,028) -8.3% 
Other Non Operating Income                           -                             -                             -   0.0% 

Income Before Transfers  $    23,610,990   $    26,166,167   $    (2,555,177) -9.8% 

Net Proceeds  $    21,482,266   $    24,090,903   $    (2,608,637) -10.8% 
Note – Net Proceeds does not includes unclaimed prizes. 



Arkansas Lottery Commission 
ADHE Transfer Analysis 

2015 2015 Unclaimed 2015 Over/Under Cumulative 
Month Transfers Prizes Budget Budget Balance 
July,2014  $        5,928,448   $            700,364   $        6,012,876   $            615,936   $            615,936  

August  $        5,296,966   $            437,855   $        6,144,757   $          (409,936)  $            206,000  

September  $        4,317,227   $            182,512   $        6,154,822   $      (1,655,083)  $      (1,449,083) 

October  $        5,939,625   $            582,802   $        6,415,976   $            106,451   $      (1,342,632) 

November 

December 

January, 2015 

February 

March 

April 

May 

June 
      

Totals  $     21,482,266   $        1,903,533   $     24,728,431  



Brenda Jackson of Pine Bluff bought a $10 
Super Jumbo Bucks ticket at Lottery 
retailer Town & Country on Middle 
Warren RC in Pine Bluff, and won 
$500,000.  She said she was going to pay 
some bills and invest the rest. 

Barbara Coursey of Benton bought a $5 
Fast Play Arkansas Progressive Jackpot 
from Misty’s Conoco in Leslie and ended 
up winning $24,176. She plans to put her 
winnings toward the purchase of a new 
home.   



Amy Thomas of West Memphis bought a 
$3 Queen of Diamonds instant ticket at 
the Quick Food Mart in Forrest City and 
won $75,000.  She plans on using her 
winnings toward the purchase of a new 
home.   

Leonard Jackson (pictured with his wife  
Birdie), from Stuttgart, won $250,000 by 
entering a losing instant ticket in the Money 
Money  Money  Play it Again drawing.  He 
and Birdie are going to invest their 
winnings.  



GTECH offers for the BEJEWELED™ property: 

 
 

• Price Point: $3 
 

• Quantity: 1,920,000 (variance of minus 2%) 
 

• Projected Launch: April 7, 2015 
  
Original offer:   License Fee: 2% of Potential Sales 
 

Updated offer:  License Fee: 1% of Actual Sales 



97 TVMs Currently Deployed 

Active  
Retailers 

1,882 active Retailers as  
of October 31, 2014 

(There were 1,870 Retailers on September 30, 2014 ) 



  
  

 
 

Citizens of Johnson County have received 
1,213* scholarships to go to college 
anywhere in Arkansas.   In addition, 841 
students from all over the state have 
received Arkansas Academic Challenge 
scholarships totaling $3,669,500 to attend 
the University of the Ozarks. 
 
    *FY 2011 through 2014 (audited) 


	ADP7B45.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14




